
PIE:  Program Decision 
This progression is to be used in determining when to continue with the program planning process.  A 
response of yes to each question is a positive indication that this will be a good programming decision.  

 
 
  
 
 
  
  
 
 

Customer, 
Presenter, Staff 

Member or 
Outreach 

Move to Planning Phase 

Program Idea/Proposal 

Does the Program fit the goals of the MLS Mission, Strategic Plan, and the 
values and philosophies of the library profession?  

 Is it in accordance with MLS policies and procedures? 

Determine date and time.  Is staff available? 

Is the location/room available? 
Book meeting room and enter specific set-up 

Are volunteers needed?  If so, begin volunteer process. 

Expressed Need for Program 

Is sufficient time available to have event listed in Info magazine, request 
MaC materials and display them for at least 2 weeks? 

• If library budget is at cap, are 
other funds available? 

• Budget for next year 
 

Does the presenter have proper credentials, training, and positive 
references which qualify them to do this program? 

 

Is program likely to be successful?  (Past program success, expressed 
interest from customers, etc.)  How will success be measured/determined? 

 

If this expressed need does not fit 
a program format, are there 

resources that can be offered to 
help fill the need?  

If no  

Library budget available for this amount and 
for this target audience? 

If yes  



PIE:  Program Planning at Library Level 
(click for check box version) 

 

Manager tracks 
budget 
expenditure  

Proof carefully when INFO calendar 
or other materials are sent for review 
and submit any corrections 

Connect event to library resources and 
services: 
• Book display 
• Bibliography 
• Database list 
• Pathfinder 

 

Submit request for MaC materials a minimum of 
45 days in advance of event.   (30 days for MaC 
materials completion and at least 2 weeks to display.) 

Supplies needed: 
• Order through BUS if possible 
• Shop for perishable supplies 

Enter into MLS Events Calendar by MaC deadline 

Organize plan for sign-up /sign-in   

Secure manager approval for description  

Complete and submit paperwork and RFP to 
manager  

If presenter is a volunteer, complete 
volunteer process 

Manager sends 
paperwork and 
RFP to BUS  

Make presenter contact info available to 
backup staff 

      
  

If presenter will be paid secure presenter paperwork:  
• Affidavit         
• W-9 
• Background check/artist data form 
• Special programming form 
• Notify BUS if presenter is a family member of an 

MLS employee 

Library marketing of event at least 2 weeks in 
advance: 
• Display MAC materials 
• In-house monthly calendar 
• Make staff aware of event 
• Send emails 
• Deliver flyers 

Send email reminders the day before event 

Prepare description of event: 
• Clear purpose tied to strategic plan goals 
• Concise and engaging 

      
  

http://my.metrolibrary.info/drupal/document/affidavit-exempt-status-under-workers-compensation-act
http://my.metrolibrary.info/drupal/document/w-9-request-taxpayer-identification-number-and-certification
http://my.metrolibrary.info/drupal/document/artistpresenter-program-description-form-and-letter
http://my.metrolibrary.info/drupal/document/special-programming
http://my.metrolibrary.info/drupal/marketing/document/info-magazine-calendar-deadlines
http://my.metrolibrary.info/drupal/marketing/project_request
http://my.metrolibrary.info/drupal/document/request-purchase-330-account-programming


 
PIE:  Program Planning for OUT Event 

(click for check box version) 
 

Manager tracks budget 
expenditure  

Connect event to library resources and services: 
• Book display 
• Bibliography 
• Database list 
• Pathfinder 

 

Supplies needed: 
• Order through BUS if possible 
• Shop for perishable supplies 

Organize plan for sign-up /sign-in   

Verify meeting room is booked  

Proof carefully when INFO calendar or other 
materials are sent for review and request any 
corrections 

Manager sends paperwork 
and RFP to BUS  

Library marketing of event at least 2 weeks in 
advance: 
• Display MAC materials 
• In-house monthly calendar 
• Make staff aware of event 
• Send emails 
• Deliver flyers 

Send email reminders the day before event 

Plan date and time with OUT 
Secure manager of LO approval 

If presenter will be paid from library 330 budget:  
Complete and submit RFP to manager  

 

http://my.metrolibrary.info/drupal/document/request-purchase-330-account-programming


PIE: Volunteer Process 

 

 

 

 

       

Need Volunteers?  

Create an opportunity in the Volunteer Management System.  
Email Volunteer Services and let them know your volunteer needs. 

Review applicants received from Volunteer 
Services. Interview potential volunteers.  

Notify Volunteer Services of which 
volunteers you would like to place 
in your opportunity. 

Under 17?  Send signed parent 
waiver to Volunteer services 

Over 17?  Wait for completed 
background check notice from 
Volunteer Services. Communicate event details with 

your volunteers. 

Be sure volunteers log their hours on event day. 

After the event, send a thank you note, or other 
token of appreciation.  

It is helpful to keep a spreadsheet with volunteer contact information for future events. 



PIE:  Program Execution and Review 
 
 
  
 
 
  
  
 
 

Staff conducted event? Outside presenter? 

Make sure room is set up according to event needs 

Evaluate success of program: 
Attendance 

• Marketing sufficient? 
• Date and time appropriate to event? 
• Subject matter of interest? 
• Outside factors such as weather? 

Feedback / Evaluations 
• Presenter effective? 
• Subject matter of interest? 
• Program run smoothly? 
• Clear connection to library goals? 

Customer actions after event 
• Materials checked out on program topic? 
• Questions asked of staff regarding program topic? 
• Customers stayed after event to discuss 
• Comments on Twitter or Facebook 

Were the direct and indirect costs warranted based on the success of event?  

Make connection to library resources and services 

Count participants and enter in MLS Room Mgr 

Distribute evaluations, when applicable, and collect as completed 

Submit presenter feedback to OUT 
 

Review evaluations and other feedback 

Assist customers in the library after the event 

Welcome presenter to library, assist as needed, provide water Make sure supplies are ready 

Welcome customers to the event and if applicable, thank sponsors 

Provide sign in sheet with space for name and contact info 



PIE:  Program Planning Checklist 
Programmer: 

 If presenter is being paid, secure presenter paperwork: 
• Affidavit 
• W-9 
• Background check/artist data form 
• Special programming form 
• Notify BUS if presenter is a family member of an MLS employee 

 Complete and submit paperwork and RFP to manager 

 If presenter is a volunteer, begin volunteer process. 

 Make presenter contact info available to backup staff 

 Prepare description of event: 
• Clear purpose tied to strategic plan goals 
• Concise and engaging 

 Secure supervisor approval for description 

 Enter into MLS Events calendar by MaC deadline 

 Submit request for MaC materials a minimum of 45 days in advance of event.   (30 days for MaC materials 
completion and at least 2 weeks to display.) 

 Proof carefully when INFO calendar or other materials are sent for review.  Submit any corrections. 

 Supplies needed 
• Order through BUS if possible 
• Shop for perishable supplies 

 Organize plan for sign-up or sign-in 

 Library marketing of event at least 2 weeks in advance: 
• Display MaC materials 
• In-house monthly calendar 
• Make staff aware of the event 
• Send emails 
• Deliver flyers 
• Send email reminders the day before event 

 Connect event to library resources and services 
• Book display 
• Bibliography 
• Database list 
• Pathfinder 

 

Manager of Library Operations: 

 Send paperwork and RFP to BUS 

 Track budget expenditures 

 Approve description of event 

http://my.metrolibrary.info/drupal/sites/default/files/documents/bus_affidavitofexempt_workcomp.pdf
http://my.metrolibrary.info/drupal/document/w-9-request-taxpayer-identification-number-and-certification
http://my.metrolibrary.info/drupal/document/artistpresenter-program-description-form-and-letter
http://my.metrolibrary.info/drupal/document/special-programming
http://my.metrolibrary.info/drupal/document/request-purchase-330-account-programming
http://my.metrolibrary.info/drupal/marketing/document/info-magazine-calendar-deadlines
http://my.metrolibrary.info/drupal/marketing/project_request


 
 

PIE:  Program Planning for OUT Event Checklist 
Programmer: 

 Plan date and time with OUT and secure manager approval 

 If presenter will be paid from library 330 budget complete and submit paperwork and RFP to 
manager 

 Verify meeting room is booked. 

 Proof carefully when INFO calendar or other materials are sent for review.  Submit any corrections. 

 Supplies needed 

• Order through BUS if possible 

• Shop for perishable supplies 

 Organize plan for sign-up or sign-in 

 Library marketing of event at least 2 weeks in advance: 

• Display MaC materials 

• In-house monthly calendar 

• Make staff aware of the event 

• Send emails 

• Deliver flyers 

• Send email reminders the day before event 

 Connect event to library resources and services 

• Book display 

• Bibliography 

• Database list 

• Pathfinder 

 

Manager of Library Operations: 

 Approve date and time with OUT 

 If library 330 budget is being used:  Send paperwork and RFP to BUS 

 Track budget expenditures 

http://my.metrolibrary.info/drupal/document/request-purchase-330-account-programming
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